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A formal hearing was held in this case on Novenber 17, and
Decenber 3-4, 2003, in Tallahassee, Florida, before Suzanne F
Hood, Admi nistrative Law Judge with the D vision of
Admi ni strative Hearings.
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Post O fice Box 623
Tal | ahassee, Florida 32302-0623

For Respondent: Edward A. Tellechea, Esquire
Ofice of the Attorney General
The Capitol, Plaza Level 01
Tal | ahassee, Florida 32399-1050

STATEMENT OF THE | SSUES

The issues are as follows: (a) whether Respondent acted
upon Petitioner’s application for renewal as an office surgery

accrediting organization within the tine franes established



under Section 120.60(1), Florida Statutes; and (b) whether
Respondent properly denied Petitioner’s application for renewal
of its status as an approved physician office surgery
accrediting organi zati on.

PRELI M NARY STATEMENT

By letter dated Decenber 12, 2002, Petitioner Florida
Acadeny of Cosnetic Surgery, Inc. (Petitioner/FLACS) submtted
to Respondent Departnent of Health, Board of Medicine
(Respondent/the Board) an application for renewal of its status
as an approved physician office accrediting organization,
pursuant to Florida Adm nistrative Code Rul e 64B8-9.0092. After
Respondent requested additional information, Petitioner
submtted a conplete application on January 17, 2003.

Respondent considered Petitioner's application on
February 8, 2003, in Olando, Florida; on June 7, 2003, in
Mam , Florida; and on August 2, 2003, in Olando, Florida. At
t he August 2, 2003, neeting, Respondent voted to deny the
renewal application.

On August 28, 2003, Respondent issued a Notice of Intent to
Deny for the following violations of Florida Adm nistrative Code
Rul e 64B8-9.0092: (a) failing to provide copies of
accreditation reports and corrective action plans within 30 days
of conpletion of accrediting activities; (b) failing to

i mredi ately report conditions in physicians' offices that posed



a potential imediate threat to patients; (c) issuing letters of
uncondi ti onal accreditation and sendi ng Respondent copies of
such letters when Petitioner found deficiencies during the

i nspection and had not received followup material show ng ful
conpliance; and (d) leaving itens unchecked or checking itens
"yes" and "no" on the inspection check list, so that Respondent
was unable to determ ne whether the facility conplied with the
i nspection criteria.

During the hearing, Petitioner presented the testinony of
three witnesses. Petitioner offered 30 exhibits, all of which
were received into evidence.

Respondent presented the testinony of three wtnesses.
Respondent offered 27 exhibits, all of which were received into
evi dence.

At the conclusion of the hearing the parties were
instructed to file proposed orders by February 2, 2004.

Volunmes 1 and 2 of the hearing transcripts were filed on
Decenber 31, 2003. Volunes 3, 4, and 5 of the hearing
transcripts were filed on January, 5, 2004.

On January 21, 2004, Petitioner filed a Joint Mtion for
Extension of Time to file proposed orders. An Order G anting

Joint Motion for Extension of Tinme set March 5, 2004, as the new

deadline for filing proposed orders.



On March 4, 2004, Petitioner filed a second Joint Mdtion
for Extension of Time to file proposed orders. An Oder
Granting Joint Motion for Extension of Tinme set March 11, 2004,
as the new deadline for filing proposed orders.

FI NDI NGS OF FACT

Backgr ound

1. In Florida, physicians who performcertain surgical
procedures in their offices are required to register the office
and have the office inspected by Respondent unless the office is
accredited by a nationally recognized accrediting agency or an
accrediting organi zati on approved by Respondent. § 458.309(3),
Fla. Stat. (2003); Fla. Adm n. Code R 64B8-9. 0091.

2. In order to avoid physician office inspection by
Respondent, a physician nust submt witten docunentation of a
current office-accreditation survey by one of the nationally
recogni zed or Board- approved accrediting organi zations. Fla.
Adm n. Code R 64B8-9.0091(2)(a) and 64B8-9.0091(3)(a). A
physician is also required to submt a copy of a current
accreditation survey within 30 days of accreditation of the
office. Fla. Admn. Code R 64B8-9.0091(3)(b).

3. Forida Adm nistrative Code Rul es 64B8-9.0092(1)(b) and
64B8-9.0092(7) list the approved national and Board- approved
accrediting organi zations. Petitioner is the only Board-approved

accrediting organi zati on.



4. Florida Adm nistrative Code Rule 64B8-9.0092(1)(a)
provi des that "accredited" neans that an office has achieved
either "full" accreditation or "provisional" accreditation when
the office is in "substantial conpliance” with accrediting
st andar ds.

5. Petitioner provided Respondent with a conplete
application for renewal as an office surgery accrediting agency
on January 17, 2003. Florida Adm nistrative Code Rul e 64B8-
9.0092(5) specifies that such entities nust apply for renewal
every three years and shall submt their applications for
renewal at |east three nonths prior to the third anniversary of
their initial approval. Petitioner conducted office surgery
accreditation inspections for approxinmately three years prior to
the final hearing in this matter.

6. Physicians who conduct office surgery are required to
conply with Florida Adm nistrative Code Rule 64B8-9.009 regardi ng
the Standard of Care for Ofice Surgery. Florida Admnistrative
Code Rul e 64B8-9.0091(2)(a) specifically provides that all
nationally recogni zed and Boar d-approved accrediting organizations
shall be held to the sane surgery and anesthesia standards for
Florida office surgery sites as adopted by rule.

7. Petitioner's accreditation standards, as outlined in
its original application for approval as an accrediting agency

and its subsequent application for renewal, include the



requi renent that physicians conply with the standard of care

rules for office surgery as outlined in Florida Adm nistrative

Code Rule 64B8-9.009. In fact, Petitioner asserts that its

standards neet or exceed the requirements of Chapters 455 and

458, Florida Statutes (2003), and rules pronul gated there under.
8. Petitioner's accreditation standards shoul d have

remai ned the sanme throughout the three years preceding the

subm ssion of its renewal application. Petitioner did not file

any changes or anendnents to its accreditation standards prior

to submtting its renewal application on January 17, 2003.

Subm ssion of Corrective Action Pl ans

9. Throughout the first three years of its operation,
Petitioner provided Respondent with copies of all the
accreditation reports for the facilities it inspected and
accredited as required by Florida Adm ni strative Code Rul e 64B8-
9.0092(4)(e). That same rule also required Petitioner to
furni sh Respondent copies of any corrective action plans within
30 days of receipt fromthe inspected physician office.

10. Petitioner did not provide Respondent with any
corrective action plans or any conpliance information until
after Petitioner filed its renewal application. Petitioner did
not offer any corrective action plans as evidence during the
heari ng even though Petitioner found deficiencies (non-

conpliance with accreditation standards) in 24 of the 25 office



i nspection files entered as evidence by the Respondent in this
hearing. The only materials submtted by Petitioner that
address the deficiency corrections are copi es of photographs,
i nvoi ces, packing slips, order fornms, and correspondence from
the i nspected offices, which are supposed to constitute evidence
of subsequent conpliance accreditation standards.

11. Beth Sautner is Petitioner's Executive Secretary.
Ms. Sautner's duties required her to submit the requisite
accreditation nmaterials to Respondent and to comrunicate with
Respondent regardi ng such activities when needed. The greater
wei ght of the evidence indicates that Respondent's staff never
told Ms. Sautner to only send the facility inspection form and
t hat subm ssion of corrective action plans and conpliance
mat eri al s was unnecessary.

12. Ms. Sautner knew that a rule required the subm ssion
of corrective action plans. Nevertheless, Petitioner never
filed any petition seeking a waiver of such rule.

Action on the Application

13. Respondent considered Petitioner's renewal application
on three separate occasions. It was first considered on
February 8, 2003, in Olando, Florida, at Respondent's regularly
schedul ed neeting. At that neeting Petitioner waived the 90-day
provision in Section 120.60(1), Florida Statutes (2002), until

after Respondent's August 2003 neeti ng.



14. Respondent next considered Petitioner’s renewal
application at a regularly schedul ed neeting on June 7, 2003, in
Mam , Florida. Finally, Respondent voted to deny the
application at the August 2, 2003, neeting in Olando, Florida.

15. Respondent filed the Notice of Intent to Deny
Petitioner's application for renewal as an office surgery
accrediting organi zati on on August 28, 2003.

Accreditati on Process

16. Upon the request and paynent of an accreditation fee,
Petitioner arranges for the inspection of an office by an
i nspector. Inspection is required when the physician conducts
level Il office surgery lasting nore than five mnutes or |evel
1l office surgery. The inspectors are physicians affiliated
with Petitioner who personally visit the facility to conduct the
i nspecti on.

17. The inspectors use an inspection form when conducting
the accreditation inspection. The formcontains a pass or fai
check-of f space next to each statenent reflecting an
accreditation standard. The form contains comment sections
follow ng the standards and at the end provides for a pass or
fail designation along with two additional sections. The
i nspectors use the final sections for outlining mnor
deficiencies to be corrected within 20 worki ng days and for

maj or deficiencies requiring a second inspection. The form has



signature lines for the inspector and the physician being
i nspect ed.

18. After conpleting the inspection, the inspector
forwards the formto Ms. Sautner. Next, the inspector and
Ms. Sautner review the formto determ ne what is needed in order
to conplete the process. The inspector tells M. Sautner what
i s needed and she attenpts to collect the requisite conpliance
docunentation fromthe inspected facility. The appropriate
materials are then forwarded to Ms. Sautner who sends themto
the inspector for a final accreditation determnation. The
final accreditation determ nation is always nade by an inspector
and never by Ms. Sautner.

19. Once the final accreditation determ nation is made,
Ms. Sautner orders an accreditation certificate from Scri bes,
Inc. Scribes, Inc. sends the certificate directly to the newy
accredited facility. At tinmes, Ms. Saunter orders the
certificate in advance but places it on hold until she is
notified that an accreditation determ nati on has been nade.
Ms. Sautner usually contacts Scribes, Inc. by e-mail to request
rel ease (delivery) of the certificate. Scribes, Inc. then sends
Petitioner a facsimle copy of the physician’ s accreditation
certificate.

20. Petitioner accredits offices for three years. The

accreditation period begins to run fromthe date of the original



of fice inspection. The certificate that Petitioner issues

t hrough Scribes, Inc. contains a nonth and year which reflect
the final nonth of the facility accreditation. Therefore, if a
facility's accreditation certificate has a May 2005 date, it
reflects an accreditation from May 2002 t hrough May 2005. This
is true even when the physician did not docunent that his or her
facility fully conplied with Petitioner's accreditation
standards until, in sonme cases, nonths after the initial

i nspection.

21. After Petitioner requests Scribes, Inc. to send a
certificate to a newy accredited facility, Petitioner sends a
copy of the facility inspection form the accreditation
certificate, and a cover letter to Respondent. This
docunentation notifies Respondent that Petitioner has inspected
t he physician's office and that the office is entitled to
recognition as an accredited facility.

22. Throughout the hearing Petitioner's wtnesses
testified that physicians' offices were not accredited until
t hey denonstrated that they had net all of the accreditation
standards. The wei ght of the evidence indicates that Petitioner
routinely accredited a facility retroactive to its inspection
dat e.

23. A review of every accreditation certificate in

evi dence shows that each facility s period of accreditation

10



starts the nonth Petitioner performed the inspection and ends
three years later. This is true even when the inspection form
reveal s that the physician’s office did not fully conply with
Petitioner's accreditation standards at the tinme of inspection
and the physician did not denonstrate conpliance until nonths
after the initial inspection.

24. Ms. Sautner's testinony adds support for the
proposition that Petitioner gave physicians accreditation credit
retroactively to the inspection date. She was responsible for
notifying Scribes, Inc. to release accreditation certificates
beari ng specific nonths and years exactly three years after the
date of the inspections, as opposed to three years after the
date of conpliance with standards.

25. Petitioner's inspectors considered the inspection date
to be the accreditation date. They knew the subsequently issued
accreditation certificates would reflect conpliance with
accreditation standards for a period of tinme before the
physi ci ans actual |y denonstrated conpliance.

26. It is noteworthy that, upon conpletion of the
i nspections, Petitioner gave a "pass" or, in a couple of cases,
a provisional pass, to every physician’s office that Petitioner
i nspected before it submtted its renewal application. This
adds credence to the supposition that Petitioner considered the

i nspection date to be the date that a facility was entitled to

11



accreditation, even though the physicians did not denonstrate
conpliance until sonme time after the inspection.

27. It is clear that Petitioner was not routinely
accrediting physicians' offices without requiring sone evidence
of denonstrated conpliance with accreditation standards.

I nstead, Petitioner usually required the physicians to furnish
sone docunentati on show ng conpliance after an inspection
reveal ed deficiencies but allowed the new period of
accreditation to begin retroactively on the date of the

i nspecti on.

28. The nost persuasive evidence indicates that the date
Petitioner conpleted the accreditati on process occurred sonetine
after the inspection: (a) on the date Ms. Sautner authorized
Scribes, Inc., to release the physician's accreditation
certificate; or (b) the date that Scribes, Inc., faxed
Ms. Sautner a copy of the accreditation certificate sent to the
physician. Therefore, the information provided to Petitioner
was inaccurate to the extent it reflected that physicians
offices were in full conpliance as of their inspections date.

29. dven the above, Respondent presented anpl e evidence
whi ch denonstrates that Petitioner's accreditation process was
m sl eading. At the very least, Petitioner |acked sufficient
gqual ity assurance policies and procedures to ensure that

physi ci ans were not recogni zed as accredited before they were
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entitled to such recognition. Regardless of whether any
physi ci ans were actually perform ng surgery in their offices
bet ween the inspection dates and the dates of conpliance,
Petitioner's accreditation procedure created a fal se inpression
of the adequacy of the facilities that Petitioner inspected.
This m scharacterization of the status would | end support for
the acceptability of procedures perforned in that setting when
t he physician was not entitled to that recognition, with
potential consequences to the health and well being of the
patients.

Mar wan Shaykh, M D.

30. Petitioner inspected Dr. Shaykh’s facility on May 30,
2002. The date that appears on his accreditation certificate is
May 2005. Hence, his accreditation covers May 2002 through My
2005. During the inspection, Petitioner determ ned that
Dr. Shaykh’s office did not have the follow ng required
medi cations: adrenalin (expired), dextrose (expired), verapam |
hydrochl ori de (expired), succinylcholine, and nitroglycerin.
Petitioner also discovered that Dr. Shaykh's office did not have
the followi ng required nonitoring and/ or energency equi pnent:
anbu bag and energency power able to produce adequate power to
run required equipnent for a mninmmof two hours. (hereinafter

“emer gency power”).

13



31. After the inspection, Dr. Shaykh provided Petitioner a
copy of an invoice fromthe Apothecary at Menorial. The invoice
indicated that Dr. Shaykh ordered adrenalin (ephedrine),
dextrose, verapam | hydrochloride, succinylcholine, and
nitroglycerin (nitroquick) on July 2, 2002. The invoice was
dat ed August 15, 2002.

32. Dr. Shaykh al so provided Petitioner a copy of an
i nvoi ce from Physician Sal es and Services, Inc. The invoice
reflected that Dr. Shaykh ordered an anbu bag (resuscitator
adult disp) on July 16, 2002. The invoice was dated July 16,
2002.

33. Finally, Dr. Shaykh provided Petitioner a copy of a
letter which read in part:

Pl ease find encl osed the copies of the

anest hesia record where the EBL is recorded,

t he physician job description and a copy of

the surgery | og.

In addition, invoices indicate the

repl acenent of Dextrose 50 percent, |supre

1: 5000, Verapam | 5ng/2m , succinyl choline

20mg/ M to the crash cart and Adm nistration

sets (Mcro drips) and Adult Resuscitator

bag (Anbu Bag) to the surgery room
The letter appears to be a cover letter that acconpani ed the
above-di scussed invoices. The letter is undated and does not

i ndi cate when Petitioner received it. However, if it

acconpani ed the nedication invoice fromthe Apothecary,
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Dr. Shaykh must have sent it to Petitioner on or after
August 15, 2002.

34. Ms. Sautner ordered and placed a hold on Dr. Shaykh’s
accreditation certificate on June 6, 2002. She released the
hold on July 16, 2002.

35. The certificate itself has a fax date of June 11,
2002. It appears that Scribes, Inc., faxed it to Petitioner on
t hat date.

36. Based on the foregoing, it is not clear whether the
fax date on Dr. Shaykh’s certificate of June 11, 2002, or
Ms. Sautner's stated rel ease date of July 16, 2002, is the
actual release date. Nevertheless, regardl ess of which date is
the correct release date, it is apparent that Petitioner sent
Dr. Shaykh an accreditation certificate before he docunented
conpliance with Petitioner's accreditation standards because the
Apot hecary invoice was dated after both possible rel ease dates.

Karen Chapnman, M D.

37. Petitioner inspected Dr. Chapman’s facility on
April 6, 2002. The date that appears on her accreditation
certificate is April 2005. Hence, her accreditation covers
April 2002 through April 2005. During the inspection,
Petitioner determned that Dr. Chapnman’s office did not have
mul ti ple (14) nedications, one of which was inderal. Petitioner

al so discovered that Dr. Chapman’s office did not have a
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requi red anbu bag anong ot her m ssing nonitoring and/ or
ener gency equi pnent.

38. After the inspection, Dr. Chaprman provi ded Petitioner
copi es of invoices from Sout hern Anesthesia + Surgical dated
April 11, 2002, which reflected that Dr. Chapman ordered all the
m ssi ng nedications with the exception of inderal. Dr. Chapnan
al so provided Petitioner a copy of undated correspondence which
asserted that Karen Chaprman ordered and received inderal 1ng/ni,
on April 11, 2002.

39. Both the Southern Anesthesia + Surgical invoice copies
and the undated correspondence regarding the inderal contain a
fax strip across the top. The date on the fax strip indicates
that Dr. Chapnman sent the invoice copies and the indera
correspondence to Petitioner on February 12, 2003.

40. Ms. Sautner was unable to provide an order or rel ease
date for Dr. Chapnan’s accreditation certificate. However, the
i nspection file contained an accreditation certificate which had
a fax date across the top of May 10, 2002.

41. The Sout hern Anesthesia + Surgical invoice copies and
t he undat ed correspondence regardi ng the inderal were obviously
faxed to FLACS over seven nonths after the accreditation
certificate was sent to Dr. Chapman. Petitioner attenpts to
explain this discrepancy away by claimng that it had al

conpliance docunentation prior to issuing accreditation but in
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sone cases it could not find the docunents when it conducted an
audit in 2003. In those instances, Petitioner contacted the
physi ci ans and asked themto send the conpliance materials again
after the fact. Such an explanation is unacceptabl e because it
does not explain why the conpliance docunentation was not in the
file inthe first place. Additionally, Petitioner has provided
no docunmentation of conpliance materials fromDr. Chapnman

di scl osi ng whet her she ever obtained a required anbu bag.

Luci en Arnmand, M D.

42. Petitioner inspected Dr. Armand’'s facility on June 8,
2001. The date that appears on his accreditation certificate is
June 2004. Hence, his accreditation covers June 2001 through
June 2004. During the inspection, Petitioner determ ned that
Dr. Armand’s office did not have the foll ow ng required
medi cations: adrenalin (epinephrine) 1/10,000 dilution, calcium
chl oride, dextrose, dilantin (phenytoin), dopam ne, and i nderal
(propranolol).

43. After the inspection, Dr. Armand provided Petitioner
on sonme unknown date a copy of an invoice from Medical 11
Pharmacy. The invoice reflected that on April 23, 2001,

Dr. Armand ordered dilantin, dopam ne, and inderal. The invoice
was dated April 30, 2001
44. Dr. Armand al so provided Petitioner, on some unknown

dat e, unsi gned correspondence indicating that he had “re-
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supplied” his energency cabinet with adrenalin, calcium
chl ori de, dextrose, dilantin, dopam ne, and inderal.

45. Ms. Sautner placed Dr. Armand’s accreditation
certificate on hold on June 22, 2001. The certificate had a fax
date across the top of June 28, 2001.

46. The above-referenced invoice fromMedical 111 Pharnmacy
is of course not probative as to whether Dr. Armand obtai ned the
m ssing crash cart nedications after the inspection because the
i nvoice indicates that the drugs were ordered before the
i nspection. Furthernore, Dr. Armand’ s unsi gned correspondence
i ndi cating that he had “resupplied’” his energency cabinet with
adrenal in, calciumchloride, dextrose, dilantin, dopam ne, and
i nderal is obviously problematic because it is unsigned and
provi des no objective proof of conpliance.

Scott Warren, M D

47. Petitioner inspected Dr. Warren’s facility on
April 11, 2001. The date that appears on his accreditation
certificate is May 2004. Thus, his accreditation covers May 2001
t hrough May 2004. During the inspection, Petitioner determ ned
that Dr. Warren’s office did not have required intubation
f or ceps.

48. After the inspection, Dr. Warren provided Petitioner a
copy of an order receipt froman unknown pharnaceutical vendor.

The order receipt reflected that, on an unknown date, Dr. WArren
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ordered adult and child sized MG Il Forceps (a type of

i ntubation forceps). The invoice was not dated but a fax strip
across the top reveals that Dr. Warren's office faxed a copy of
the receipt to Petitioner on July 11, 2001.

49. M. Sautner placed a hold on Dr. Warren’'s
accreditation certificate on June 22, 2001. The certificate had
a fax date across the top of June 29, 2001.

50. The copy of the Magill Forceps receipt was faxed to
Petitioner ten days after Petitioner released the accreditation
certificate to Dr. Warren. Therefore, Petitioner could not have
verified conpliance prior to the awardi ng of accreditation.
Furthernore, this discrepancy cannot be attributed to
Petitioner's 2003 audit because the fax recei pt date was
approxi mately one and a half years prior to the audit.

Juan Fl ores, M D.

51. Petitioner inspected Dr. Flores' facility on July 21,
2002. The date that appears on his accreditation certificate is
July 2005. Accordingly, his accreditation covers July 2002
t hrough July 2005. During the inspection, Petitioner
determned that Dr. Flores’ office did not have indera
(propranolol) or nasal airways.

52. Dr. Flores provided Petitioner correspondence dated

July 30, 2002, froma Laura Leyva. The correspondence indicated
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that Dr. Flores’ facility had acquired the requisite nasal
ai rways.

53. On Novenber 14, 2003, Petitioner received a fax copy
of an invoice nunbered 9927 from Prine Medical Care, Inc. The
i nvoi ce dated July 15, 2002, docunents Dr. Flores' acquisition
of inderal.

54. Dr. Flores’ accreditation certificate had a fax date
of Septenber 6, 2002, across its top.

55. The Prinme Medical Care, Inc., invoice copy was faxed
to Petitioner on Novenmber 14, 2003, over a year after the
accreditation certificate was sent to Dr. Flores. Petitioner
agai n explains this discrepancy by raising the 2003 audit
excuse. However, the explanation does not explain why the
conpl i ance docunentation was not in the file in the first place.

M na Sel ub, M D

56. Petitioner inspected Dr. Selub’s facility on May 17,
2002. The date that appears on her accreditation certificate is
May 2005. Therefore, her accreditation covers May 2002 through
May 2005. During the inspection, Petitioner determ ned that
Dr. Selub’s office did not have heparin, nasal airways, and
i ntubation forceps.

57. Dr. Selub sent Petitioner a copy of a custoner packing
slip on an unknown date. The custoner packing slip reveal ed

that Dr. Selub ordered heparin from McKesson Medi cal Surgical on
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May 3, 2002. The packing slip had a handwitten note
indicating that the heparin was received on June 1, 2002.

58. Dr. Selub also submitted a copy of a second custoner
packing slip to Petitioner on an unknown date. The second
custoner packing slip revealed that Dr. Selub ordered Magill
Forceps from McKesson Medi cal Surgical on May 13, 2002. The
packing slip had a handwitten note indicating that Dr. Selub
did not receive the forceps, which were reordered from Henry
Schein. Petitioner never received any other docunentation
indicating that Dr. Selub actually ordered or received
i ntubation forceps. Additionally, Dr. Selub also failed to
provi de any docunentation of conpliance with the nasal airway
requirement.

59. M. Sautner placed a hold on Dr. Selub’s accreditation
certificate on June 6, 2002. She released the hold on July 12,
2002. The accreditation certificate has a July 15, 2002, fax
date across the top

60. The above-referenced invoice for heparin from MKesson
Medi cal Surgical indicates that the nedication was ordered
bef ore the inspection. However, the hand witten notation on
t hat same invoice indicates that Dr. Selub's office received the
heparin on June 1, 2002. The |lack of any docunentation
regardi ng the ordering and/ or receipt of the intubation forceps

is nore problematic. Apparently Petitioner issued Dr. Selub's
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of fice an accreditation certificate wi thout obtaining further
witten verification of conpliance with accreditation standards.

Abel ardo Acosta, M D

61. Petitioner inspected Dr. Acosta's facility on
Novenber 17, 2001. The date that appears on his accreditation
certificate is Novenmber 2004. Hence, his accreditation covers
Novenber 2001 through Novenber 2004. During the inspection,
Petitioner determned that Dr. Acosta’s office did not have the
follow ng required nmedications: succinylcholine, magnesium
sul fate, heparin, dopam ne, inderal (propranolol), and dilantin
(phenytoin). Petitioner also discovered that Dr. Acosta’s
of fice did not have the followi ng required nonitoring and/ or
enmergency equi pment: tonsillar suction and nasal airways.

62. After the inspection, Dr. Acosta provided Petitioner
with the foll ow ng docunmentation: (a) a copy of a packing slip
from Sout hern Anesthesia + Surgical dated Novenmber 26, 2001,
reflecting that Dr. Acosta ordered dopam ne, succinylcholine,
dilantin, magnesium sul fate, and heparin; (b) a copy of a
statenment from Sout hern Anesthesia + Surgical dated July 15,
2002, which reflected that Dr. Acosta had ordered indera
(propranolol); (c) a copy of an invoice from Arnstrong Medi cal
I ndustries, Inc., with an order date of January 2, 2002, which
reflected that Dr. Acosta ordered a suction unit; and (d) a copy

of a packing slip from Physician Sales & Service dated
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Decenber 3, 2001, reflecting that Dr. Acosta ordered nunerous
types of airways and a yankuar suction unit.

63. M. Sautner placed a hold on Dr. Acosta’'s
accreditation certificate on Decenber 5, 2001. She released the
hol d on Decenber 12, 2001. The certificate has a Decenber 12,
2001, fax date across the top.

64. The statenent from Sout hern Anesthesia + Surgical
dated July 15, 2002, which reflected that Dr. Acosta ordered
i nderal, constitutes undi sputed evidence that Petitioner did not
verify Dr. Acosta’s full conpliance with Petitioner's crash cart
accreditation requirenments prior to the awardi ng of actual
accreditati on on Decenber 12, 2001.

Charles Graper, MD. (Level Il Accreditation)

65. Petitioner inspected Dr. Gaper’s facility for |evel
Il accreditation on March 25, 2001. The date that appears on
his accreditation certificate is March 2004. Thus, his
accreditation covers March 2001 through March 2004. During the
i nspection, Petitioner determned that Dr. Gaper’s office did
not have dextrose 50 percent, a required nedication.

66. Dr. Gaper failed to provide Petitioner with any
subsequent docunentation to denonstrate conpliance with
accreditation standards regarding the need to have dextrose 50

percent as part of the office’ s crash cart.
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67. Ms. Sautner released Dr. Graper’s accreditation
certificate on April 4, 2001. The certificate has a April 19,
2001 fax date across the top.

68. Petitioner failed to verify that Dr. G aper obtained
dextrose 50 percent for his crash cart after his inspection for
| evel 11 surgery and before the release of his accreditation

certificate by Petitioner on April 4, 2001.

Leigh Phillips, Ill, MD.
69. Petitioner inspected Dr. Phillips' facility for |evel
Il and Il1l surgery on January 31, 2002. The date that appears

on his accreditation certificate is January 2005. Hence, his
accreditation covers January 2002 through January 2005. During
the inspection, it was determined that Dr. Phillips' office did
not have the follow ng required nedications: dextrose 50
percent and 36 anpul es of dantrolene (mssing 18).

70. After the inspection, Dr. Phillips provided Petitioner
a copy of an order acknow edgnment form from Sout hern Anesthesi a
+ Surgical dated February 7, 2002. The order acknow edgnent
formreflected that Dr. Phillips ordered dextrose 50 percent.

71. Dr. Phillips' inspection file also contained a
handwitten letter fromDr. Ml Propis dated January 31, 2003.
The letter indicated that Dr. Propis had just returned fromthe
office of Dr. Phillips and while there he had counted 36 anpul es

of dantrol ene and the dextrose 50 percent in the crash cart.
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72. Ms. Sautner did not know the date that she advised
Scribes, Inc., to release Dr. Phillip s accreditation
certificate. However, her records indicate that the certificate
was faxed to her on February 19, 2002.

73. Dr. Propis’ correspondence dated January 31, 2003,
verifying Dr. Phillips' receipt of the requisite dantrol ene was
provided to Petitioner approximtely 11 nonths after Petitioner
received a copy of Dr. Phillips' accreditation certificate.
Such constitutes further undi sputed evidence that FLACS did not
verify Dr. Phillips' full conpliance with accreditation
standards prior to awardi ng himaccreditation.

Brandon Kal |l man, M D. and Franci sco Prado, M D

(conbi ned i nspecti on)

74. Petitioner inspected Drs. Kallman and Prado’s facility
on June 2, 2002. The date that appears on their accreditation
certificates is June 2005. Hence, their accreditation covers
June 2002 through June 2005. During the inspection, Petitioner
determ ned that the physicians’ office did not have the
followi ng required nedications: adrenalin (1:10,000 dilution),
magnesi um sul fate, heparin, dopam ne, pronestyl (procainam de),
and dilantin (phenytoin).

75. Drs. Kallman and Prado provided Petitioner with a copy
of a packing slip from Sout hern Anesthesia + Surgical dated

July 12, 2002. The packing slip reveals that Drs. Kall man and
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Prado ordered the m ssing adrenalin (epinephrine), dopam ne,
pronestyl (procainamde), and dilantin (phenytoin). However, as
evidenced by the fax strip across the top of the packing slip
copy, the docunmentation was provided to Petitioner via fax
transm ssion on July 22, 2002.

76. Drs. Kallnman and Prado al so provided Petitioner with a
copy of a packing slip fromHenry Schein. The packing slip is
dated July 18, 2002. The packing slip has a date of July 23,
2002, on the fax strip across the top. The packing slip in the
record is illegible. Therefore, one cannot determ ne whether
t he packing slip served as docunentation for recei pt of the
m ssi ng magnesi um sul fate and hepari n.

77. Additionally, Drs. Kallrman and Prado provided
Petitioner with copies of an e-nmil dated Cctober 14, 2002, and
mul ti pl e photos dated Cctober 11, 2002. The photos depict the
facility’'s crash cart, its drawers, and the presence of
dantrium The original inspection formdated June 2, 2002, did
not reveal any missing dantrium

78. Finally, Dr. Kallman provi ded one nore docunent which
purports to be sone attenpt at curing the deficiencies that were
di scovered during the inspection. The docunent in question is a
short handwitten letter on Dr. Kallman's | etterhead signed by
Dr. Kallman and dated July 16, 2002. The body of the letter

reads as foll ows:

26



Herewith are the docunents requested.

will fax tonorrow a copy of Ms. Mad. Katz
RN ACLS certification. Let this letter

al so reflect that we have ordered from
Henry Schein the appropriate m ssing drugs
for the crash cart. They are currently on
back order. | wll send a copy of the

shi pping slip upon arrival.

79. Ms. Sautner released Drs. Kallmn and Prado’ s
accreditation certificate on July 17, 2002. The certificate
contains a July 23, 2002, fax date across the top.

80. It may be that the illegible packing slip fromHenry
Schein verifies the recei pt of magnesi um sul fate and heparin by
Drs. Kallman and Prado. Even so, the packing slip was dated
July 18, 2002, one day after Ms. Sautner released the
accreditation certificate on July 17, 2002. Additionally, the
packing slip from Sout hern Anesthesia + Surgical was provided to
Petitioner after the accreditation certificate rel ease date.
Needl ess to say, the e-mail and nultiple photos are dated al nost
three nonths after the release of the accreditation certificate.

81. The inspection file for Drs. Kallman and Prado is
particularly problematic because the handwitten correspondence
fromDr. Kallnman put Petitioner on notice that he and Dr. Prado
did not yet have the requisite drugs needed to neet the
accreditation standards. Nevertheless, the very next day, wth

no further verification, Petitioner released the accreditation

certificate.
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Dr. Luis Zarate, M D

82. Petitioner inspected Dr. Zarate's facility for |evel
Il and 11l office surgery on Septenber 14, 2002. The date that
appears on his accreditation certificate is Septenber 2005.
Hence, his accreditation covers Septenber 2002 through Septenber
2005. During the inspection, Petitioner determ ned that
Dr. Zarate’'s office did not have the required 36 anpul es of
dant r ol ene.

83. Petitioner's inspection file for Dr. Zarate does not
contai n any docunentation of ordering or receipt of dantrol ene
by Dr. Zarate or by anyone el se on his behalf.

84. M. Sautner did not have a rel ease date for
Dr. Zarate' s accreditation certificate. The certificate had an
Oct ober 3, 2002, fax date.

85. Wien Petitioner inspected Dr. Zarate, he was working
in the sane facility as Drs. Kallmn and Prado. It is possible
that the dantrol ene photo contained in Drs. Kallmn and Prado’ s
i nspection file was neant to docunent Dr. Zarate’'s conpliance
with the dantrolene requirement. Even if that is the case,

Drs. Kall man and Prado's dantrol ene photos were dated
Cctober 11, 2002, which neans that the photos were taken after

Petitioner released Dr. Zarate's accreditation certificate.
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Dr. Andrew Wi ss and Dr. Ant hony Rogers

86. Petitioner inspected Drs. Wiss and Rogers’ facility
on Decenber 6, 2001. However, the date that appears on their
accreditation certificates is Novenber 2004. Hence, their
accreditation covers Decenber 2001 through Novenber 2004.
During the inspection, Petitioner determ ned that the
physi cians’ office did not have two required nedications:
pronestyl (procai nam de) and inderal (propranolol).

87. Drs. Weiss and Rogers provided Petitioner with a copy
of an invoice fromHenry Schein dated February 6, 2003. The
invoice reveals that Drs. Wiss and Rogers ordered the m ssing
pronestyl (procai nam de) and inderal (propranolol).

88. The inspection file also contains a printed statenent
under the title “Andrew Weiss, MD.” which states that “[a]l
ACLS approved drugs were present at the time of accreditation.
| nspect or found no deficiencies.” However, during the hearing,
Ms. Sautner admtted that the statenent was inaccurate and
inserted into the file by error.

89. Ms. Sautner placed a hold on the certificates for
Drs. Wiss and Rogers on Decenber 5, 2001 and Decenber 10, 2001.
She did not know the rel ease dates of the certificates. The fax
date on the certificates was Decenber 12, 2001.

90. The above-nenti oned Henry Schein invoice dated

February 6, 2003, is persuasive evidence that Drs. Wiss and
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Rogers ordered and received the requisite pronestyl
(procai nam de) and inderal (propranolol) over one year after
Petitioner received a copy of Drs. Wiss and Rogers’
accreditation certificates. Such constitutes undi sputed

evi dence that FLACS did not verify Drs. Wiss and Rogers’ ful
conpliance with FLACS s accreditation standards prior to
awar di ng accreditation.

Ri chard Edi son, M D

91. Petitioner inspected Dr. Edison’s facility on
April 22, 2001. The date that appears on his accreditation
certificate is April 2004. Thus, his accreditation covers Apri
2001 through April 2004. During the inspection, Petitioner
determ ned that Dr. Edison’s office did not have the foll ow ng
required medi cations: adrenalin (1:10,000 dilution),
succi nyl choline, dilantin (phenytoin), and | anoxin (digoxin).
Petitioner also discovered that Dr. Edison’s office did not have
the follow ng required nonitoring and/ or enmergency equi pnent:

i ntubation forceps.

92. Dr. Edison’s inspection file contains a handwitten
letter dated May 7, 2001, fromPamRolm R N M. Rolmwote
the letter on the letterhead for Dr. Edison’s facility, Cosnetic
Surgery Center. The letter reads in part as foll ows:

This letter is in response to request for

information for certification. The
foll ow ng nmedi cati ons have been updated and
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t he expired ones disposed of: 1) phenytoin,
2) Lanoxin, 3) succinycholine, and 4)

Al but erol Inhaler.

W have a MG || forceps in both anesthesia
carts and an extra pair in the ORI

medi cation cart.

93. Dr. Edison’s inspection file also contains three
invoices fromPrinme Medical Care, Inc. Al three invoices have
a fax strip across the top wwth a February 14, 2003, date and
t he sender nane of Cosnetic Surgery Center. The first invoice
dat ed Decenber 11, 2000, indicates that Dr. Edison ordered
ephedrine sulfate 50ng/ M. The second invoice dated Cctober 30,
2001, indicates that Dr. Edison ordered |lidocaine, heparin
verapam |, procai nam de, and phenyl ephrine. The third invoice
dated April 25, 2001, indicates that Dr. Edi son ordered
succi nyl chol i ne, albuterol inhaler, phenytoin, and di goxin.

94. Ms. Sautner testified that she ordered and placed a
hold on the certificate for Dr. Edison on May 4, 2001. She
rel eased the hold on May 10, 2001. The certificate has a
May 22, 2001, fax date across the top.

95. The above-referenced correspondence dated May 7, 2001,
does not address whether Dr. Edi son ordered/obtai ned the m ssing
adrenalin (1:10,000 dilution). Additionally, the first invoice
is dated four nonths prior to the inspection. The second

invoice is dated nonths after Petitioner rel eased the

accreditation certificate. The third invoice is appropriately
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dat ed but does not show that Dr. Edison ever ordered/obtained
the m ssing adrenalin (1:10,000 dilution). Accordingly,
Petitioner released Dr. Edison’s accreditation certificate
bef ore he docunmented conpliance with the requirenents that he
possess adrenalin (1:10,000 dilution) and intubation forceps.

Dr. Alton Ingram MD.

96. Petitioner inspected Dr. Ingranmis facility on
April 28, 2002. The date that appears on his accreditation
certificate is April 2005. Therefore, his accreditation covers
April 2002 through April 2005. During the inspection,
Petitioner determned that Dr. Ingramis office did not have a
required tonsillar suction unit with backup suction.

97. Dr. Ingrams inspection file contains a copy of a
phot ograph of a tonsillar suction unit with a hand-written date
of July 29, 2002.

98. Ms. Sautner placed the certificate for Dr. Ingram on
hol d on June 6, 2002. She released the hold on July 19, 2002.
The date on the certificate is not |egible.

99. The date on the photograph of the tonsillar suction
unit is after Petitioner released the accreditation certificate.
Petitioner accredited Dr. Ingram before he docunented ful

conpliance with accreditation standards.
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Mont Cartwight, MD. (Heathrow Facility)

100. Petitioner inspected Dr. Cartwight’s Heathrow
facility on March 3, 2001. The date that appears on his
accreditation certificate is March 2004. Thus, his
accreditation covers March 2001 t hrough March 2004.

101. During the inspection, Petitioner determ ned that
Dr. Cartwight's Heathrow office did not have the required
dopam ne, heparin, and inderal. 1In an undated letter,

Dr. Cartwight’'s staff advised Petitioner that Dr. Cartwight’s
Heat hrow facility had obtained the m ssing nedications.

102. Ms. Sautner released the hold on Dr. Cartwight’s
accreditation certificate on April 4, 2001. The fax date on
the certificate is April 19, 2001

Mont Cartwight, MD. (Olando Facility)

103. Petitioner inspected Dr. Cartwight’'s Ol ando
facility on May 13, 2001. The date that appears on his
accreditation certificate is May 2004. Hence, his accreditation
covers May 2001 through May 2004. During the inspection,
Petitioner determined that Dr. Cartwight’s Ol ando office did
not have the required dilantin and heparin.

104. Dr. Cartwight’'s office staff sent Petitioner
correspondence dated June 7, 2001. The letter clains that the
“crash cart” in Dr. Cartwight’'s Olando facility had been

“brought up to standards in accordance with conpliance. . . .7
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105. Ms. Sautner testified that she rel eased the hold on
Dr. Cartwight's accreditation certificate on June 22, 2001.
The fax date on the certificate is June 28, 2001.

| nadequate Quality Contro

106. Petitioner asserts that it has appropriate quality
assurance progranms and processes whi ch Respondent revi ewed
W t hout objection. Dr. R Gegory Smth, one of Petitioner’s
current co-directors for facility inspections, describes
Petitioner's quality assurance programin the follow ng manner:

A. Right. W have regular board neetings.
W go over the forns and changes and things
like that. W talk to inspectors and say,
you know, try to check all the boxes and
that type of thing.

Q You basically go over your work again —
A.  Yes.

Q - make sure everything is accurate?

A. Right. Plus, | think the actual neeting
with the Board of Medicine to iron out any
issues is also quality assurance.

107. Petitioner's renewal application included a two-page
docunent titled, “Quality Inprovenent Plan.” The docunent can
best be described as a description of the quality assurance
exerci ses for physicians' offices. The docunent does not
describe Petitioner's internal quality assurance program

108. O her than the above-quoted description provided by

Dr. Smth, Petitioner failed to present any evi dence that
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outlines Petitioner’s own quality assurance program In fact,
the manner in which Petitioner deals with its own errors

i ndicates that Petitioner has inadequate quality assurance
processes.

109. In situations where an inspector fails to check yes
or no on an item when conducting an inspection, Petitioner takes
the position that an inspector is not to make any changes after
the fact. Rather, Petitioner clains that it assumes the worse,
treats the blank as a no answer, and asks the physician
undergoi ng i nspection to provide a letter of attestation, a
packing slip, or sonme other material that docunments conpliance
with the accrediting standard.

110. Petitioner's inspection files reveal instances where
Petitioner did not follow the above-referenced quality assurance
policy. For exanple, the inspection formfor Harold Reed, MD.
reveal ed no check under yes or no on page 3 under the crash cart
medi cati on succinylcholine. After the inspection, Dr. Reed did
not provide Petitioner with any nmaterials docunmenting conpliance
with the requirenment to have succinylcholine on the facility's
premses. It may be that the inspector made a clerical error
during the inspection or he may have renenbered seeing the
medi cation in Dr. Reed' s refrigerator after the inspection. 1In

any event, Petitioner did not followits alleged quality
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assurance policy of requiring the physician to show conpliance
after the inspection.

111. Dr. Leonard Rubinstein’s inspection file presents
anot her exanple of Petitioner's failure to followits alleged
qual ity assurance policies. The inspection formreveals no
check under yes or no on page 3 under the crash cart nedications
| asi x and magnesi um sul fate and on page 4 under oxineter in the
noni toring and energency equi pnment section. After the
i nspection, Dr. Rubinstein did not provide Petitioner with any
docunent ati on showi ng the presence of the mssing itens.
Petitioner did not attenpt to determ ne whether the inspector
had made a “clerical error” or whether Dr. Rubinstein procured
the mssing itens. In other words, Petitioner did not follow
its own policy regarding the treatnent of situations where the
i nspector fails to check no or yes on an inspection item

112. Dr. Mchael Freeman’s inspection file presents
anot her exanple of Petitioner’s failure to followits alleged
gual ity assurance policies. Dr. Freeman’ s inspection form
reveal s no check under yes or no on page 3 under the crash cart
medi cati on mazicon. The inspection file contains no deficiency
docunent ati on, and thus, does not address the mazicon issue.
Again, Petitioner did not followits own policy regarding the
treatment of situations where the inspector fails to check no or

yes on an inspection item
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Conditions Posing a Potential |nmediate Threat

113. Dr. Hector Vila, Jr., a licensed Florida physician
and an Assistant Professor of Anesthesiol ogy and Oncol ogy at the
Uni versity of South Florida, H Lee Mdffitt Cancer Center,
testified during the final hearing on the issue of whether any
of the facilities inspected by Petitioner posed a potenti al
i medi ate threat to patients due to the deficiencies discovered
during the inspection. Dr. Vila has adm nistered anesthesia in
office surgery settings in the past and currently serves as an
of fice surgery inspector for the Respondent. Dr. Vila is an
expert in office surgery and anesthesia. His testinony
regarding Petitioner's failure to report conditions posing a
potential inmediate threat to patients is persuasive.

114. For exanple, the office of Marwan Shaykh, M D, posed
a potential imediate threat to patients because it did not have
nitrogl ycerin and epi nephrine (adrenalin) on the prem ses. Such
medi cati ons are necessary to resuscitate a patient who may
suffer a respiratory arrest due to either a surgical or
anesthetic conplication. It would be nearly inpossible to
resuscitate a patient w thout such itens.

115. Dr. Shaykh failed to provide docunentation of

conpliance with the nitroglycerin and adrenalin
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requi rement until August 15, 2002, or sonetine thereafter.
Dr. Shaykh denonstrated conpliance approxi mately two nonths
after Petitioner recognized Dr. Shaykh as being accredited.

116. It is true that Dr. Shaykh's office was | ocated
adj acent to a hospital. Therefore, it is possible that the sane
teans that respond to energencies in the hospital could go to
Dr. Shaykh's office if he needed them It is also true that
Dr. Shaykh performs in vitro fertilization procedures, which
could be term nated in case of an energency.

117. However, after Petitioner recognizes Dr. Shaykh as
bei ng accredited, he could practice any type of nedicine and
perform any procedure as long as he is properly trained to do
so. Furthernore, the office surgery accreditation rules do not
provi de any type of exenption based on the |ocation of the
physician’s office because to do so woul d underm ne the reason
for the rule. Ofice surgery facilities are not hospitals no
matter how close to the hospital they may be located. |If Dr.
Shaykh felt that his close proximty to the hospital did not
make conpliance with the office surgery rul es necessary, he
shoul d have filed a petition for waiver or variance fromthe
rel evant rules rather than ignore the need to have crucia
resuscitative drugs in his crash cart.

118. The office of Karen Chapnman, M D., posed a potentia

i mredi ate threat to patients because it |acked 16 of the 22
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nmedi cations required in an office surgery facility’'s crash cart.
The office al so | acked an anbu bag, a piece of equi pnent used to
resuscitate patients. Two of the 16 m ssing nedications were
the nitroglycerin and adrenalin, which are absolutely necessary
to resuscitate a patient who nay suffer a respiratory arrest due
to either a surgical or anesthetic conplication. The anmbu bag
is al so used on patients under respiratory arrest and it is
considered a crucial piece of equipnent.

119. Dr. Chapman’s office failed to provide docunentation
of conpliance with the crash cart requirenents until
February 12, 2003. She did not denonstrate conpliance until
approxi mately nine nonths after she obtai ned her accreditation.

120. Dr. Chapnman may have informed Petitioner that she did
not intend to open her new practice until she obtai ned
accreditation. However, Dr. Chapnan obtained her accreditation
and presumably opened her practice al nost nine nonths before she
provi ded Petitioner with docunentation of her conpliance with
the crash cart nedication requirenents. She never provided any
mat eri al s docunenti ng whet her she obtained the required anbu
bag.

CONCLUSI ONS OF LAW

121. The Division of Adm nistrative Hearings has

jurisdiction over the parties and the subject natter presented
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herei n pursuant to Sections 120.569 and 120.57(1), Florida
Statutes (2003).

122. Petitioner asserts that its application for renewal
as an office surgery accrediting agency nust be approved as a
matter of | aw because Respondent failed to take action within
the tinme franmes established by Section 120.60(1), Florida
Statutes. The statute in question reads in part as foll ows:

Every application for a license shall be
approved or denied within 90 days after
recei pt of a conpleted application unless a
shorter period of time for agency action is
provided by law. The 90-day tine period
shall be tolled by the initiation of a
proceedi ng under ss. 120.569 and 120. 57.
Any application for a license that is not
approved or denied within the 90-day or
shorter time period, within 15 days after
conclusion of a public hearing held on the
application, or within 45 days after a
recormended order is submtted to the agency
and the parties, whichever action and
timeframe is |atest and applicable, is
consi dered approved unl ess the reconmended
order recomrends that the agency deny the

i cense.

123. Petitioner presented a conplete application to
Respondent on January 17, 2003, and wai ved the 90-day
requi renent of Section 120.60(1), Florida Statutes, until after
Respondent’ s August 2003 neeting. Such waiver was made on the
record at Respondent's neeting on February 8, 2003. Respondent
took action on Petitioner's application on August 2, 2003, when

it voted to deny the application. The evidence presented by the
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parties supports the conclusion that Respondent acted within the
time franes set forth in Section 120.60(1), Florida Statutes

(2003). See State Dept. of Transportation v. Calusa Trace

Devel opnent, Corp., 571 So. 2d 543 (Fla. 2nd DCA 1990).

124. Respondent has the burden of proving by clear and
convi nci ng evidence that Petitioner is not entitled to renewal
of its status as a board-approved accrediting organi zation. See

Coke v. Departnment of Children and Fanmily Services, 704 So. 2d

726 (Fla. 5th DCA 1998); Dubin v. Departnent of Business

Regul ation, 262 So. 2d 273 (Fla. 1st DCA 1972).

125. Respondent is the state agency charged with
regul ating the practice of allopathic nmedicine pursuant to
Chapters 456 and 458, Florida Statutes. Respondent is
responsi bl e for approving organi zati ons that accredit
physi ci ans' offices where level Il procedures |asting nore than
five minutes and all level |1l surgical procedures are perforned
pursuant to Section 458.309(3), Florida Statutes (2003).

126. The Petitioner has applied for renewal as an office
surgery accrediting agency pursuant to Florida Adm nistrative
Code Rul e 64B8-9.0092(5), which reads as foll ows:

(5) Renewal of Approval of Accrediting
Organi zations. Every accrediting

organi zati on approved by the Board pursuant
tothis rule is required to renew such
approval every three years. Each witten

subni ssion shall be filed with the Board at
| east three nonths prior to the third
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anni versary of the accrediting

organi zation's initial approval and each
subsequent renewal of approval by the Board.
Upon revi ew of the subm ssion by the Board,
written notice shall be provided to the
accredi ting organi zation indicating the
Board's acceptance of the certification and
the next date by which a renewal subm ssion
must be filed or of the Board' s decision
that any identified changes are not
acceptabl e and on that basis denial of
renewal of approval as an accrediting

or gani zati on.

127. Florida Adm nistrative Code Rule 64B8-9.0092(4), sets
forth the requirenents/standards for approval in relevant part
as foll ows:

(4) Requirenents. In order to be approved
by the Board, an accrediting organi zation
must conply with the follow ng requirenents:

(a) The accrediting agency nust have a
mandatory qual ity assurance program approved
by the Board of Medi ci ne.

(b) The accrediting agency nust have
anest hesi a-rel ated accreditati on standards
and quality assurance processes that are
revi ewed and approved by the Board of
Medi ci ne.

(c) The accrediting agency nust have
ongoi ng anest hesi a-rel ated accreditation and
qgqual ity assurance processes involving the
active participation of anesthesiol ogists.

(d) Accreditation periods shall not exceed
t hree years.

(e) The accrediting organi zation shal
obtai n aut horization fromthe accredited
entity to rel ease accreditation reports and
corrective action plans to the Board. The
accrediting organi zation shall provide a
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copy of any accreditation report to the
Board office within 30 days of conpletion of
accrediting activities. The accrediting
organi zation shall provide a copy of any
corrective action plans to the Board office
wi thin 30 days of receipt fromthe physician
of fice.

(f) If the accrediting agency or

organi zation finds indications at any tine
during accreditation activities that
conditions in the physician office pose a
potential inmmediate jeopardy to patients,
the accrediting agency or organization wll
i medi ately report the situation to the
Depart nent.

(g) An accrediting agency or organization
shall send to the Board any change in its
accreditation standards within 30 cal endar
days after nmaking the change.

(h) An accrediting agency or organization
shall conply with confidentiality

requi renents regarding protection of patient
records.

128. Respondent denied the Petitioner’s renewal
application on four different grounds. Respondent based the
first reason for denial on Petitioner's failure to conply with
Fl ori da Adm nistrative Code Rul e 64B8-9.0092(4)(e). Cear and
convi ncing evidence indicates that Petitioner failed to provide
Respondent with any corrective action plans for the inspected
facilities within the required 30 cal endar days.

129. Respondent's staff did not advise Petitioner that it
did not have to conply with the requirenments of Florida

Adm ni strative Code Rule 64B8-9.0092(4)(e) to file corrective
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action plans. Petitioner did not request a variance or a waiver
of the rule pursuant to Section 120.542, Florida Statutes
(2003).

130. Respondent's second reason for denial is that
Petitioner failed to conply with Florida Adm nistrative Code
Rul e 64B8-9.0092(4)(g). In some instances, Petitioner inspected
of fices, found deficiencies, reviewed conpliance docunentation,
and awarded accreditation retroactive to the inspection date.

I n other instances, Petitioner awarded accreditation retroactive
to the inspection date before the physicians submtted
conpl i ance docunentation addressing all the noted deficiencies.
Petitioner recognized sone facilities as being accredited even

t hough the physicians never furnished required conpliance

mat eri al s.

131. It is clear that Petitioner ignored its witten
accreditation standards and failed to provide the Respondent
with the accreditation standards under which it was actually
operating. |In other words, Petitioner was not abiding by its
acknow edged accreditation standards, and thus, de facto changed
its accreditation standards w thout notifying Respondent.

132. Respondent’s third reason for denial is based on
Petitioner's failure to conply with Florida Adm nistrative Code

Rul e 64B8-9.0092(4)(a). Petitioner's internal quality assurance
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programis i nadequate and applied inconsistently as evidenced by
t he foll ow ng:

a. Petitioner routinely awarded accreditation to the
i nspection date even though the physicians' offices did not
conply with accreditation standards at that tinme. |In sone
i nstances, Petitioner awarded accreditation to physicians before
they submtted materials docunenting conpliance with all the
deficiencies discovered during the inspection.

b. Petitioner enployed an inconsistent approach to the
treatment of what the inspectors referred to as “clerical
errors” on the inspection forns. These errors occurred when the
inspector failed to mark off either a yes or a no on a specific
itemon the inspection form The evidence shows that in
mul ti ple instances, Petitioner did not conply with its own
policy of requiring conpliance docunentation, but rather treated
the itemas if it were checked off yes based solely upon the
inspector’s claimthat the itemwas in place.

133. Respondent’s final reason for denial is based on
Petitioner's failure to conply with Florida Adm nistrative Code
Rul e 64B8-9.0092(4)(f). 1In at |east two instances, physicians
operated their office surgery practices after Petitioner noted
during the inspection process that they were m ssing essenti al
resuscitative nedi cati ons and equi pnent. The physicians failed

to docunent that they obtained the mssing itens before
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Petitioner awarded them accreditation. The |ack of such
mat eri al s posed a potential imediate threat to these
physi ci ans’ patients. Petitioner failed to report the
conditions in the offices that posed a potential imedi ate
threat to patients.

RECOMVENDATI ON

Based on the foregoing Findings of Fact and Concl usi ons of
Law, it is

RECOMVENDED.

That Respondent enter a final order denying Petitioner’s
application for renewal as an office surgery accrediting agency.

DONE AND ENTERED t his 15th day of April, 2004, in

Tal | ahassee, Leon County, Flori da.

W&‘%‘ Yoo

SUZANNE F. HOOD

Adm ni strative Law Judge

Di vision of Adm nistrative Hearings
The DeSot o Buil di ng

1230 Apal achee Par kway

Tal | ahassee, Florida 32399-3060
(850) 488-9675  SUNCOM 278-9675
Fax Filing (850) 921-6847

www. doah. state. fl . us

Filed with the Clerk of the
D vision of Adm nistrative Hearings
this 15th day of April, 2004.
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COPI ES FURNI SHED

Alfred W dark, Esquire

117 South Gadsden Street, Suite 201
Post OFfice Box 623

Tal | ahassee, Florida 32302-0623

Edward A. Tel l echea, Esquire

O fice of the Attorney General
The Capitol, Plaza Level 01

Tal | ahassee, Florida 32399-1050

Rosanna Cat al ano, Esquire

Ofice of the Attorney General
The Capitol, Plaza Level 01

Tal | ahassee, Florida 32399-1050

WIlliamW Large, Ceneral Counsel
Departnment of Health

4052 Bal d Cypress Way, Bin A02
Tal | ahassee, Florida 32399-1701

R S. Power, Agency Cerk
Departnent of Health

4052 Bal d Cypress Way, Bin A02
Tal | ahassee, Florida 32399-1701

Larry McPherson, Executive Director
Board of Medi ci ne

Department of Health

4052 Bal d Cypress Wy

Tal | ahassee, Florida 32399-1701

NOTI CE OF RIGHT TO SUBM T EXCEPTI ONS

Al parties have the right to submt witten exceptions within
15 days fromthe date of this Reconmended Order. Any exceptions
to this Recommended Order should be filed with the agency that
will issue the final order in this case.
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